MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
INDEPENDENT CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
(MEASURE G OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE)

AGENDA

Tuesday, February 3, 2015
6:30 P.M.

Board Room
750-A San Pierre Way, Mountain View, CA 94043

I. CALL TO ORDER AND COMMUNICATIONS 6:30
A. Roll Call
B. Approval of Agenda
C. Community Comments

NOTE: The committee, in compliance with the Brown Act, is not permitted to take action on non-

agendized items.

II. CONSENT AGENDA 6:50
A. Minutes of COC Meeting on Tuesday, October 7, 2014
III. REVIEW AND ACTION 7:00
A. Election of Officers
IV. REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 7:10

A. Bond Audit - Prepare for March 19, 2015 Board presentation
B. Review YTD Financials & 2014-15 1% Interim Budget

C. Project Update: Middle Schools

D. Boundary Advisory Task Force (BATF)

V. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

V1. FUTURE COC MEETING DATES
A. 2014-15 Quarterly Meetings
1. March 31, 2015 - Status of Projects
3. June 23, 2015 - Budget

VII. ADJOURNMENT 8:00
Documents Attached
I. Draft meeting notes of October 7, 2014 3. YTD Financials & 2014-15 1" Interim Budget

2. Bond Audit & Draft March 19, 2015 presentation 4. Middle Schools update — board meeting 20140¢t23

Members (term date ends)

Juan Aranda (20160ct29) Marlie Jacobs (2018Dec31) Christi Opitz (20170ct29)

Greg Coladonato — Ex-Officio Terese McNamee-Staff Braid Pezzaglia (2018Dec31)
Thida Cornes (2017Dec31) Joey Mercer (20170ct29) Peter Pirnejad (20150c¢t29)-Sec
Cleave Frink (20170ct29) Hafsa Mirza (2017Dec31) Fiona Walter (20150¢t29)-Chair

CC: Board of Trustees
Interim Superintendent — Kevin Skelly

Principals
Sites to post - Bubb, Castro, Crittenden, Graham, Huff, Landels, Monta Loma, Slater, Stevenson, Theuerkauf



Mountain View Whisman School District
Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee
("Measure G Oversight Committee”)

October 7, 2014

Members Present: Phil Palmer (Ex Officio), Jeremy Burns, Jessica Gandhi, Fiona
Walter, Peter Pirnejad, Greg Coladonato, & Christi Opitz

Staff Present: Terese McNamee, CFO

Others Present: None

Absent: Juan Aranda & Charlie Durand

Members of the public present - Adam Coll, Principal of Greystone West

Meeting was called to order at 6:36 pm by Greg Coladonato, Chair.

L Call to Order as noted above.
A. Roll Call as above.
B. Agenda stands as written.
C. No community comments.

I1. Consent Agenda
A. Minutes from COC Meeting on Tuesday October, 7, 2014 approved 6-0

III. Review and Action

IV.  Election of Officers -
A. Secretary — Peter Pirnejad unanimously voted as secretary 5-0 1 abstention
B. Chair — Fiona Walter elected as Vice Chair 5-0 1 abstention
C. Vice Chair — Greg Coladonato voted in as Vice Chair 5-0 1 abstention

V. Review and Discussion
A. Measure G Update
a. Presentation from Adam Coll (Presentation attached)
1. Phase 1 of three (3) phase construction projects for middle schools
i. . Crittenden is 98% complete
ii. Graham is 92% complete
Greystone West was responsible for moving teachers in and out
Projects that are currently out for proposals
i. Graham 2-story pre-fab building budgeted at $3.75 M with an
anticipated start date of March 2015
i. All of the bids came in over expectation and exceeded custom built.
lii. They are 2/3 the way in the design of the buildings in preparation
for DSA submittal in late 2014
4. Phase 2 and 3 of Crittenden
i. Tracking for March submittal to DSA
5. Future projects include CMS Track and Field, CMS/GMS Security and
Elementary School

SR

*MSC = Motion Seconded and Carried 1



6. Next steps
i. Middle Schools
A. At the end of the design and working on final drawing for Phase
2 for DSA
New classroom buildings in Phase 2
And auditorium in Phase 3
Budget
1. Graham

a. Anticipated and experiencing an increase in cost from

new code regulations
2. Crittenden

a. Tracking close to budget for new classrooms.

b. However because student growth is primarily shown in
Graham’s boundaries, there may need to be a shift in
boundaries or programmatic changes to shift population
to Crittenden in an effort to maintain parity between
sites.

c. Demographers are being consulted and options are being
considered to build additional classrooms at Crittenden.

3. Additionally, given this new demographic information, the
District is trying to consider the impact and make
appropriate changes so the Elementary schools can begin
planning for construction.
ii. Chairman Coladonato had question on how the Bond moneys could
be used to support the construction of a district office
iii. Fiona Walter suggested that the bond language states that if the
admin office is beneficial to the students, bond funds could be used
for a district office
iv. Terese McNamee clarified that there is no current plan to redevelop

a new district office.

A. The remainder of the funds after the midd!e schools are
complete are to be used for the Elementary Schools.

B. Two to three elementary schools can be upgraded at a time
based on districts ability to issue bonds. It is anticipated that
plan will be developed between now and February.

B. Bond Audit moved forward on the agenda (See attached presentation)

a. Sheldon Chavan bond auditor presenting info for FY 13-14
1. AICPA independent audit report was included
2. There were no findings in the opinion letter. Everything has been

fairly stated in the Measure G Building Bond. This is a representation
for the Measure G Bond Building fund only

End fund balance $47.38Mil as of the end of the reporting period

To date we have only sold around $50Million of Bonds of the
$198Million Measure G Bonds. Have capacity to sell approximately
$30 million of bonds every few years.

oNnm

P W

*MSC = Motion Seconded and Carried 2



5. $4.2 Mil in commitments have not been paid but have been
encumbered

6. $2.9Mil in soft costs (i.e. architect and design) have been spent

7. Schedule of findings and recommendations
i. No findings to note

8. Unmodified opinion to this bond audit. This means that everything is
as expected.

C. Review YTD Financials — Terese McNamee

a.
b.

C.

Required to use the County financial system and presented County report
and District created report.

This report is used by the Auditor to reconcile between contracts and
budget.

Ms. McNamee was looking for feedback on the financial report from the
CcoC

. Looking for variance between board approved budget and contract and

contract budget to actual expenditure

On the summary sheet Terese McNamee is looking to track sources and
uses of funds and when and if there are overages what sources (like
developer fees) will fund these overages.

Developer fees are one time and can only be used to support growth and
capacity issues.

For the two middle schools, MVWSD. seems to be trending to be about
$2M over projection for all the phases, proposing to use non-Measure G
funds.

D. Renewal of Terms

00 oW

Jessica Gandhi and Charlie Durand need to step down from the COC
We will be posting for new members

We need a minimum of seven COC members

Ms. McNamee will be making the recommendation to the Board on the
23" that we need at least two more candidates.

Jeremy Burns may be stepping down and will decide before the next
meeting.

VI. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

VII. FUTURE COC MEETING DATES
A. 2014-15 Quarterly Meetings

a.
b.

December 16, 2014 - Finalize Audit & Status of Projects
March 31, 2015 - Status of Projects

C. June 23, 2015 - Budget
VIII. Adjourned at 8:06 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,
Peter Pirnejad, Secretary

*MSC = Motion Seconded and Carried 3



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE G
BOND BUILDING FUND

AUDIT REPORT

For the Year Ending June 30, 2014

* * *

CHAVAN & ASSOCIATES, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
1475 SARATOGA AVE., SUITE 180
SAN JOsE,CA 95129



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Table of Contents

Page No.

FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent Auditor’s REPOrt ........ooieriiiiininnitin et e 1-2

Financial Statements:
Measure G Bond Building Fund Balance Sheet ..o, 3
Measure G Bond Building Fund Statement of Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance...........ccoevuvecrveeiirnneccrnerenemnsicsisnsssnisssssnisnns 4
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements........c.ccvieininii e, 5-12

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Program Statement:

Measure G Bond Building Fund Statement of Approved Cumulative

Expenditures From Inception through June 30, 2014 ..o 13
Measure G Bond Building Fund Statement of Approved

Expenditures For the Year Ended June 30, 2014.......oovvniinrieees 14
Measure G Bond Building Fund Statement of Approved

Expenditures For the Year Ended June 30, 2013, 15
Notes to Program StateIment ..........cccviviininioneinninises e sssssssans 16

Schedule of Findings and Recommendations..........c.ccecvniiieineiiminmniecnc s 17
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS:
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government AuUdifing SHINAQEAS ...............ccovvevireeerieeereeseeeeresis e sssesssssss s asssssssssssans 18-19

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on the Measure G Bond Building Fund..................... 20-21



FINANCIAL SECTION



o) LildVall Ol ooULIdiGY, LLY
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Measure G Citizens’ Oversight Committee and
Governing Board Members
Mountain View Whisman School District

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Measure G Bond Building Fund of
the Mountain View Whisman School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Mountain View Whisman School District’s management is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Measure G Bond Building Fund of the Mountain View Whisman School

Page|j 1 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129

info@cnallp.com * www.cnallp.com



LildVall Ol RooULIaLGO; LLY

N/ Certified Public Accountants

District, as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Measure G Bond Building Fund
and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Mountain View
Whisman School District, as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its financial position for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Mountain View Whisman School District’s basic financial statements. The
Statement of Cumulative Expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The Statement of Cumulative Expenditures is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Statement of Cumulative
Expenditures is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated September 26,
2014 on our consideration of the Mountain View Whisman School District’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Mountain View Whisman School District’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

CL&A UP

September 26, 2014
San Jose, California

Page |2 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129

info@cnallp.com * www.cnallp.com



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2014
ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury § 47354726
Accounts Receivable 46,891
Total Assets $ 47401617

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabiltties

Accounts Payable $ 21,030
Total Liabilities 21,030
Fund Balance

Restricted for Capital Projects 47,380,587
Total Fund Balance 47,380,587
Total Liabilties and Fund Balance $ 47401617

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

3



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT

Measure G Bond Building Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

REVENUES
Interest Earnings

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Classified Salaries
Classified Benefits
Supplies and Materials
Contract Services
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning

Fund Balance Ending

F_oﬂr_ _t_l:l_e“Y_:Pal Ended June 30, 2014

$ 205,812

205,812

27,718
17,903
[5,656
44,116
2,334,837

2,440,230

(2234,418)

49,615,005

$ 47,380,587

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

4



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mecasure G Bond Building Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 -SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Accounting Principles

The Mountain View Whisman School District (the “District”) accounts for its financial
transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the Department of Education’s
California School Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the District conform to
generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

B. Reporting Entity

The District services 70,000 residents and over 5,000 students. The District is located at the
southern tip of the San Francisco Bay and is comprised of seven elementary and two middle
schools. The District is the level of government primarily accountable for activities related to
public education. The governing authority consists of five elected officials who, together,
constitute the Board of Trustees.

In 2012-13, an advisory committee to the District's Governing Board and Superintendent, called
the Measure G Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee was established. The Committee's oversight
goals include: advising on bond construction priorities, reviewing school bond construction
plans, reviewing project plans and budgets, and ensuring compliance with the conditions of
Measure G.

The financial statements presented are for the individual Measure G Bond Building Fund and are
not intended to be a complete presentation of the District's financial position on operations.

C. Basis of Presentation

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The Building Fund is a
governmental fund and is presented as a major fund in the District’s combined financial
statements. The Building Fund is used to account for proceeds from the sale of real property and
account for the acquisition of major governmental capital facilities and buildings from the sale of
bond proceeds such as Measure G general obligation bonds.

The accounting and financial treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus, With this measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows, current
liabilities and deferred inflows are generally included on the balance sheet. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for these funds present increases (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses)
in net current assets.



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2014

D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions:

On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available, “Available” means the resources will be collected within the
current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available” means collectible within the
current period or within 60 days after year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the modified accrual
basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be
recognized.

Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as
unearned revenue. On governmental fund financial statements, receivables associated with non-
exchange transactions that will not be collected within the availability period have also been
recorded as unearned revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures:

On the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred. However, under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the
governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is
the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
for all governmental funds. By state law, the District’s governing board must adopt a final budget
no later than July 1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption.
The District’s governing board satisfied these requirements.



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

These budgets are revised by the District’s governing board and District superintendent during
the year to give consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the year for
all budgeted funds. The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual
appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object,

F. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated
when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated on June 30.

G. Assets. Liabilities, and Equity

I. Cash and Investments

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to $250,000 by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of
its cash in the County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other Districts in
the county and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates
market value. Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment
losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.

All District-directed investments are governed by Government Code Section 53601 and
Treasury investment guidelines. The guidelines limit specific investments to government
securities, domestic chartered financial securities, domestic corporate issues, and California
municipal securities. The District’s securities portfolio is held by the County Treasurer.
Interest earned on investments is recorded as revenue of the fund from which the investment
was made.

2. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include sites, improvement of sites, buildings and improvements,
equipment, equipment and construction in progress, are reported in the government-wide
financial statements of the District but not include in the Measure G building fund. Such assets
are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost unless obtained by annexation or
donation, in which case they are recorded at estimated market value at the date of receipt. The
District utilizes a capitalization threshold of $5,000.

Projects under construction are recorded at cost as construction in progress and transferred to
the appropriate asset account when substantially complete. Costs of major improvements
and rehabilitation of buildings are capitalized. Repair and maintenance costs are charged to



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

expense when incurred. Equipment disposed of, or no longer required for its existing use, is
removed from the records at actual or estimated historical cost.

Long-Term Obligations

In the Measure G building fund financial statements, bond premiums, discounts and bond
issuance costs are recognized during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued,
premiums, or discounts are reported as other financing sources/uses.

Fund Balance Classifications

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the District classifies governmental fund balances
as follows:

* Non-spendable includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is
not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints.

* Restricted includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due
to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

¢ Committed includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that
are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of
decision making authority and does not lapse at year-end. Committed fund balances are
imposed by the District’s board of education.

* Assigned includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund balance may be
assigned by the Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent of Business Services.

® Unassigned includes positive fund balance that has not been classified within the above
mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

The District uses restricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit
doing this, such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the
District would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of
unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District has joined together with other school districts in the County to form the South Bay
Area Schools Insurance Authority (SBASIA) and the Santa Clara County Schools Insurance



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Group (SCCSIG) public entity risk pools currently operating as common risk management
and insurance programs. The District pays an annual premium for its property and casualty,
workers’ compensation, unemployment and liability insurance coverage. The Joint Powers
Agreements provide that SBASIA and SCCSIG will be self-sustaining through member
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of self-
insured levels.

6. Accounting Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Summary of Deposits

A summary of deposits as of June 30, 2014, is as follows:

Carrying Fair Investment
Deposit or Investment - Building Fund Only Amount Value Rating
Cash in county treasury investment pool $47,354,726 $47.407.892 Various

Cash in County Treasury

The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool as the
District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County Treasurer
(Education Code Section 41001). The fair value of the District’s investment in the pool is reported in
the accounting financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro rata share of the fair
value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of
that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained
by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local
agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State
warrants or treasury notes; securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances;
commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan
companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of
beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies, certificates of participation,
obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations.



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mecasure G Bond Building Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk are
described below:

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity
of its fair value to the changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to
interest rate risk by investing in the County Treasury. The District keeps cash in the Santa Clara
County Investment Pool which had a fair value of approximately $4.67 billion and an amortized
book value of $4.66 billion. The average weighted maturity for this pool is 416 days,

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer. This is measured by the
assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The investment
with the Santa Clara County Investment Pool is governed by the County’s general investment
policy, which is to apply the prudent-person rule: Investments are made as a prudent person would
be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital,
and, in general, avoid speculative investments. The County’s investment policy limits all
investments to the top three ratings issued by at least two of the nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations (NRSRO).

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits.
However, the California Government code requires that a financial institution secure deposits
made by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool
held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the
total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to
secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of
the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San
Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in
any one issuer beyond the amount stipulated by the California Government code. District
investments that are greater than 5 percent of total investments are in either an external investment
pool or mutual funds and are therefore exempt.



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, is shown below:

Balance Balance
Capital Assets July 01, 2013 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2014
Work-in-progress - not depreciable 5 385264 § 2,356,655 $ 267,322 $ 2,474,597
Building and Improvements 322,212 - 322,212

uipment - depreciable 54,890 - 54,890 -
Total capital assets - net depreciation $ 440,154 $ 2,678,867 $ 322212 $ 2.796.809

NOTE 4 - MEASURE G GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND

Through elections, the District received authorization to issue general obligation bonds (GOB) that
requires the county to levy annual ad valorem taxes for the payment of interest and principal on the
bonds. Bond proceeds are used to build additional classrooms and to perform repairs and
renovations.

In February of 2013, the District issued $50,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series A, to
finance constructions projects for facilities improvements. From the gross proceeds of $52,623,484,
which included a premium of $2,848.484 net of an underwriting discount of $225,000, net proceeds
of $52,148,484 (after payment of $475,000 in issuance costs) was deposited with the County in the
District’s name. Of the net proceeds deposited, $50,000,000 was recorded in the Measure G building
and fund and $2,148,484 was recorded in the bond interest and redemption fund. The bond bears
interest at 3 to 4% and matures on September |, 2040.

The following schedule summarizes District’s Measure G general obligation bond as of June 30,
2014:

Original Ousstanding Outstanding Current
Bond Issue July 01. 2013 [ssued Redeemed  June 30, 2014 Portion
2012 GOB. Series A. Meas. G $ 50.000.000 $ 50.000.000 $ - $4.000,000 $ 46.000.000 3 4.200.000




MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The following is a summary of the Measure G bond annual debt service requirements as of June 30,
2014:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 4200000 $ 1,641,800 $ 5,841,800
2016 325,000 1,615,925 1,940,925
2017 - 1,611,050 1,611,050
2018 - 1,611,050 1,611,050
2019-2023 1,235,000 8,000,450 9,235,450
2024-2028 4,200,000 7,437,250 11,637,250
2029-2033 8,585,000 6,113,250 14,698,250
2034-2038 14,725,000 3,816,250 18,541,250
2039-2040 12,730,000 693,350 13,423,350
Total Debt Service ~ § 46,000,000 $ 32,540,375 $ 78,540,375

NOTE 5 - COMMITTMENTS

Through September 26, 2014, the District had encumbered $4,214,980 of the Measure G proceeds
that are budgeted to be spent on capital projects in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

NOTE 6 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 26, 2014, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT

Measure G Bond Building Fund
Statement of Approved Cumulative Expenditures
From Inception through June 30, 2014

Project

Site

Project Code |

Bubb Crittenden

Graham __ Districtwide  Total |

Facility Construction
Administration Management
Modernize Classrooms

Ouidoor Improvements
Technology & Data Infrastructure
Total Expenditures

085000 5 - 5 - $ - $ 85970 § 85970
085010 350 972,456 1,343,784 - 2,316,590
085040 - 10,255 43,921 - 54.176
085045 132.366 5,000 - - 137,366
085085 - 146.415 183.320 - 329.735

$132.716 $1.134.126 $ 1.571.025 § 85.970 $ 2.923.837

The notes to the supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.

13



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Statement of Approved Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Site
Project Project Code | Bubb Crittenden Graham  Districtwide Total |
Facility Construction 085000 3 - 3 S $ - $ 56268 § 56,268
Administration Management 085010 350 835,762 1,104,049 - 1,940,161
Modernize Classrooms 085040 - 10,255 43,921 - 54,176
Qutdoor Improvements 085045 54,890 5,000 - - 59,890
Technology & Data Infrastructure 085085 - 146.415 183.320 - 329.735
Total Expenditures $ 55240 $ 997432 § 1.331.290 § 56.268 $ 2.440.230

The notes to the supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.

14



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Statement of Approved Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Site
Project Project Code | Bubb  Crittenden  Graham  Districtwide Total |
Facility Construction 085000 5 - $ e $ - $ 29702 8 29,702
Administration Management 085010 - 136,694 239,735 - 376,429
Qutdoor Improvements 085045 77.476 - - - 77.476
Total Expenditures $ 77476 5 136,694 $§ 239.735 $ 29702 $§ 483607

The notes to the supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.

I5



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Note to the Program Statement
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - THE PROGRAM

Proposition 39 was enacted by the voters on November 7, 2000, and changed the required majority
for local voter approval of public school and community college general obligation bonds from two-
thirds to fifty-five percent of votes. It also required school districts to provide facilities to charter
schools operating within their jurisdictions.

On June 5, 2012, 67.58% of local voters passed Measure G, which generates funding to provide safe,
efficient, and modern facilities for Mountain View Whisman Schoo! District students and staff. The
approval percentage was the highest in Santa Clara County and the 4th highest of the 34 school bond
measures in the State of California.

Measure G will generate up to $198 million to repair, upgrade and expand our local schools. Funds
will be generated through the sale of general obligation bonds, which will be repaid through
assessments on residential and commercial property located within the Mountain View Whisman
School District. The annual cost to local property owners is limited to $30 per $100,000 of assessed
property value.

All projects funded by the issuance of Measure G general obligation bonds will be subject to review
both by the District’s Board of Trustees and by an independent citizens’ oversight committee. The
District will also provide many public forums to present progress and seck input from community
members, parents, and staff.

NOTE 2 - CITIZEN’S OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

Duties of the committee include ensuring that bond revenues are expended only for the construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and
equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities. The
committee must also ensure that no funds are used for any teacher or administrative salaries or other
school operation expenses.

Furthermore, the committee is authorized to receive and review copies of the annual independent
performance audit and the annual independent financial audit required by Article XIIIA, Section
[(b)(3)(C) and Article X!IA, Section 1(b)(3)(D), respectively, of the California Constitution.

The Committee was formed by the Board trustees, which met five times in the last fiscal year. The
Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee was comprised of the following members as of June 30, 2014

Juan Aranda Dana Doctorow Jessica Gandhi
Jeremy Burns Charlie Durand Peter Pirnejad
Greg Coladonato Christi Opitz Fiona Walter



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
AND
RECOMMENDATIONS



MOUNTAIN VIEW WHISMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Measure G Bond Building Fund
Schedule of Findings and Recommendations
For the Yea_r_En_ded June 30, 2014

** No findings or exceptions noted **

17



OTHER AUDITOR’S
REPORTS



i

LilaVall & HodULIdLEGY, LLK
Certified Public Accountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Measure G Citizens’ Oversight Committee and
Governing Board Members
Mountain View Whisman School District

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Measure G building fund of the Mountain View Whisman School District as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Mountain View Whisman School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 26, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Mountain View
Whisman School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Mountain View Whisman School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Mountain View Whisman Schoo! District’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis., A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Mountain View Whisman School
District’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its

Page | 18 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129

info@cnallp.com * www.cnallp.com



LildVdil &1 HooULidlGo, LLE
o/ Certified Public Accountants

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C L&A UP

September 26, 2014
San Jose, California

Page | 19 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129

info@cnallp.com * www.cnallp.com



UlidVdil & RoaULIdLGY, LLF
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON THE
MEASURE G BOND BUILDING FUND

Measure G Citizens’ Oversight Committee and
Governing Board Members
Mountain View Whisman School District

Compliance

We have audited Mountain View Whisman School District's (the District) compliance with
Proposition 39/Measure G Bond of the June 5, 2012, as approved under Proposition 39, and with the
performance requirements referred to in Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIIIA, Section
I(b}3)(C) of the California Constitution.

Management’s Responsibility

Compliance with the requirements referred to above is the responsibility of the District’s
management.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District’s compliance with the laws and regulations
identified above based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Governmernt Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a material effect on compliance with the laws and regulations have occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the District’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. The following summarizes specific procedures performed during our audit, but is not
intended to be an all-inclusive list:

l. We verified that bond proceeds were deposited in the District’s name and invested in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

2. We selected 5 contracts and verified their compliance with the California Uniform Construction
Cost Accounting Commission bid requirements, and that their invoices were paid within the
contract terms and with board approval,

3. We tested payments made to the architectural service companies and reviewed the terms of the
contract,

4. We tested approximately 81% of the 2013-14 expenditures to ensure they were valid, allowable
and accurate.

Page | 20 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129

info@cnallp.com * www.cnallp.com



LilaVdil & HooULIdLGY, LLY
Certified Public Accountants

We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the District’s compliance with those requirements.

Opinion
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the Measure G Bond Building Fund
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

Purpose of This Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing over compliance and the

results of that testing based on the standards referred to above. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

C4A LUP

September 26, 2014
San Jose, California

Page | 21 1475 Saratoga Ave, Suite 180, San Jose, CA 95129

info@cnallp.com * www.cnallp.com



‘ranasal sIUBL |y JOUISI] [004DS UBLUSIAA MBIA LIEIUNOY /00T 3




Sollgjes Jojeljsiuiwpe pue Joyoea] DC__U:_OC_ o
sasuadx3 BunessdQ jooyos oN

SHpny |eldoueuly -

(uonnrIsuon

v (0)(€)(q)) uonoes ‘v|IX ejoiuy) s)pny. 8oueulIcHo

oajiwwo) ybisienp Jusptadepu] .

SPEON 40 uonenjeas .
sjuaswalinbay Ajjigejunoooy
aNjeA passasse JOM0g LS 1od 0gg peesoxa 0) jJou
salladoid |elaJawwodpue {BIUSPISa) U0 SJUSLUSSOSSE
ybnouyy piedal spuog “¢L-zL0g ul panss] spuog 0SS
s|ooyos
|eo0| uno puedxa.ple speibdn ‘yiedss o) Buipuny
apinold 0] Z|0Z ul passed puoq <) ainses| INS6 1S

Arewwng o ainsespy




¢ "paniasal siybu iy OUISIQ [C0YIS UBWSIAA MBIA UIRIUNOW 002 &

ANjigisuodsal Areionpi4

9)iIsgam uo suodail ysiignd

sdnoJb Aousnyisuos JByJ 0} 81edIUNWWOoY .
spodal |[enuue anss| .

JIpnNe |enuue MaIAdy -«

20D 9y} Jo asodind

000 bulysiigeyse o0z Ul pejoeus go6l gy
(Juswaiinbai jpne

/81OA %GG) 000¢ Jeqiusnop uil passed g¢ uonisodold

9ajlwwio) ybisiaaQ s, udaziyin




F PEAIESAl SIYDL [y DS [00UDS UBLWSHIAA MEIA BIUNCW 002

(ued0) uoneziuebiQ s1ohedxe ] Aunwiwos) »

el|bezzad pieig

Z)dO Bsuyo

BZIN BSjeH

I19249|\ Asor

sqooer aljJeN

| UL DAB9|D

$8UJ0D eply |

sjuspmnjs Jo uejpienbuaied
euoiz)iaquay AJunwwon
sasdey dnoio uaziyn Jousg
¢ (pelbuind Jejod) ssauisng
uST\ 2 wnwiulpy) uonejussaiday

(et
ANUCG&( uen _...V ®>_“_.m“_.

sapIwio) JybisianQ s,usziig




LREORELP S

SO0 s 19ar

RIPHECD)

0ETOVY'T

LESPECT
911t
9%9<i
£06°L1
8IL'LE

ZI8'60T

m.m.mﬁ

‘paniasal syb [y JISI {00UOS UBLUSILAA MBIA UIBIUNOW 002 G

mnuf o&ﬁ..,m pum.g

e L ;Mﬁ:ﬁﬂ.ﬁ uuﬁ.wmm pun.g

samypuadxy Mo,

& Aming jegde)
- $aNAIDG JOROUO))
seude pue saqddng
SHJIUIY pausissY)
saETs pagisse D)
STANLIANIJXI

ANUIAIY jmO L

sduusesy 1sa1amy
SANNIATY

%s

"$107 ‘0f sung papuy 1vo o 10
syduey?) pus sdunjipuadxy INUIAIY JO IS

pung 3uipping puog r) 2INSLIP
RILSIA TOOHIDS NVISTHA MTIA NIVINIAOK

aouejeg pun4 ul sabueyn



‘paaiasas siubls iy TSI [00UDS UBLUSILAA MBIA LIBJUNOW /002 &

LIS £C6C & 0658 S SCO1L5'1 § OZ1 0Ll ﬁ.ﬁ&h.m:m
SEL6TT - 07TERT SIrorT
99"LE 1 -

saanpoadyg ey
mMIdNsEIjUY nie(] W Alopouwny o]
siuswssoxhug 200mng

L ZE1

1S - 1Z6'er OrOs£0 SWOOINSTY) JINLDPOW

065918 S PREEPEL 010580 WwaNsFmpy uotEn sy

0L6°SE § 016658 § - V.43 000580 wonanIIsun’} Anjiong

— feol PPN PIUISI] WBgE ao_uno-_r.n-lﬁ po7y 1¥org »afosg
T = w1._

ng g3noay) uondaduj uwroa g
femuny) ﬂe.ao..aa< Jo Juwne)g



"paniasal siybu ||y JOMISIC [GOUDS UBLUSIUAA MBIA UIRIUNCW /007

) Jdeooe pieog ay) jey) spusuwiwioss.
pue £ L0Z .‘0S sunp papus JeaA |easi)
oy} 10J Jipne aguewioLsd pue jeioueuly
oY) paroidde p pemainai sey HON 8y

SJUSWWOD pue suoljepuswiwioddy 209




g8 ‘parasal siybu iy IOIISIC J00UIS UBWISIUAA MBIA UIBIINOW 4002 &




14-15 G.0. Bond Budget and YTD Financial

12/31/14
14-15 1st Interim 14-15 Actual 14-15 Encumbrance

02 - Bubb

6 - Capital 11,095

085045 - Outdoor Improvements 11,095

02 - Bubb 11,095

09 . Districtwide

2 - Classified Salaries 26,179 12,981.00 12,981

3 - Benefits 19,337 9,274.13 8,312

§ - Services 1,700.00 2,276

6 - Capital 576.00

085000 - Facility construction 45,516 24,531.13 24,569

2 - Classified Salaries 498.02

3 - Benefits 45,06

6 - Capital 3,621.87

085010 - Administration Management 4,164.95

09 - Districtwide 45,516 28,696.08 24,568

11 - Crittenden

6 - Capital 288.00

085000 - Facility construction 288.00

5 - Services 3,047.66 1,414

6 - Capital 1,527,060 377,383.98 43,056

085010 - Administration Management 1,527,060 380,431.64 44,470

& - Capital 384,453.47 728,935

085015 - Auditorium 384,453.47 728,935

6 - Capital 53,161.01

085020 - Classroom Addition Based on 6 53,161.01

5 - Services 2,300.00

085022 - 2,300,00

5 - Services 10,564.00

6 - Capital 12,215.45

085025 - Deferred Maint. Projects 22,783.48

6 - Capital 30,102 4,330.43 11,730

085030 - Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 30,102 4,330.43 11,730

6 - Capital 29,894

085035 - Kitchen Upgrades 29,894

2 - Classified Salaries 3,739.09

3 - Benefits 378.10

4 - Supplies 1,002.24 3,164

5 - Services 3,067.54 1,037

6 - Capital 7,237,165 3,826,435.80 459,192

085040 - Modernize Classrooms 7,237,165 3,834,622.77 463,393

6 - Capital 2,407.10

085045 - Outdoor Improvements 2,407.10

6 - Capital 150,544.86 199,455

085065 - Reconfigure Library 150,544.86 199,455

6 - Capital 68,621

085075 - Security Upgrades 68,621

4 - Supplies 36,688.81

6 - Capital 5,537.34

085085 - Technology & Data Infrastructure 42,226.15

11 - Crittenden 8,794,327 4,877,548.91 1,546,498
0172712015 08:.03:41 Page 1




14-15 G.O. Bond Budget and YTD Financial

12/31/14
14-15 1st Interim 14-15 Actual 14-15 Encumbrance

14 - Graham

6 - Capital 288.00

085000 - Facility construction 288.00

5 - Services 5,566.79 5174

6 - Capital 2,314,488 918,208.87 730,525

085010 - Administration Management 2,314,488 923,775.66 735,700

6 - Capital 52 516.37 36,438

085015 - Auditorium 62,516.37 36,438

5 - Services 1,092.06

6 - Capital 23,443 29.819.50

085020 - Classrcom Addition Based on & 23,443 30,911.56

6 - Capital 69,262.40 7,895

085025 - Deferred Maint. Projects 69,262.40 7,895

6 - Capital 4,102 26,828.46

085030 - Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 4,102 26,828.46

2 - Classified Salaries 6,225.47

3 - Benefits 617.66

4 - Supplies 7,697.51

5 - Services 2,643.25

6 - Capital 4,175,112 6,483,477.00 832,117

085040 - Modernize Classrooms 4,175,112 6,500,660.39 832,117

6 - Capital 5,399.57 2,407

085045 - Outdoor Improvements 5,399.57 2,407

6 - Capital 41,556.59

085065 - Reconfigure Library 41,556.59

6 - Capital 83,188

085075 - Security Upgrades 83,188

4 - Supplies 36,688.83

5 - Services (17,737.23)

& - Capital 300,387.62 35

085085 - Technology & Data Infrastructure 319,349.22 35

5 - Services 350.00

6 - Capital 3.085.50 15,615

085095 - 3,435.50 15,615

14 - Graham 6,517,145 7,983,984.22 1,713,393

Grand Total 15,356,988  12,890,229.21 3,295,654
01/27/2015 08:03:41 Page 2




Mountain View Whisman School District

Agenda Item for Board Meeting of October 23, 2014

Agenda Category: Review and Approval

Agenda Item Title: Design Approval Phase II and Update on Facilities Projects
Estimated Time: 30 minutes

Person Responsible: Terese McNamee, Chief Business Officer

Background:

In June 2014, the Board reviewed and approved phase II and phase III projects at the Crittenden and Graham
Middle Schools funded by Measure G. Entering the final phase of design, the architects presented the
schematic designs and have been working with the program manager and consultants to finalize design and
begin construction drawings for submittal to DSA. Based on code changes in effect beginning January 1,
2014 and changing demographic patterns, the projects have been redesigned to meet our program needs,
schedule, and budget plans. During the Board presentation the architects and program manager will discuss
the proposed changes and present the final proposed budget for the Board’s approval. Designs, schedules
and cost estimates have been generated with consideration given to total project costs including hard and soft
costs, logistics, and escalation.

Crittenden:

Beginning in the summer of 2015, the District will begin construction on an innovation center that
incorporates new classrooms and open collaboration space, a broadcast studio, new library construction,
restroom additions and modernizations, courtyard improvements and associated furniture, fixtures, and
equipment. In addition, Phase IIT will begin construction on the auditorium, safety and security upgrades,
outdoor improvements, a new track, new synthetic soccer field, and sports center improvements starting July
2015 continuing through August 2016. An abbreviated schedule is outlined below.

New Library / Innovation Center July 15, 2015-August 15, 2016
Building 200 Modifications June 15, 2015-August 15, 2015
Restroom Modernization June 15, 2015-August 15, 2015
Auditorium July 15, 2015-August 15, 2016
Site Improvements June 15, 2016-August 15, 2016

Phase II: New Library/Innovation Center and Restroom Modernization

Based on the latest demographic study, student enrollment at the middle schools is expected to grow from
1368 to over 1700 students, with over 1050 students residing within the current Graham boundaries and
approximately 600 students within the Crittenden boundaries. To balance enrollment between the two
middle schools, boundary and programmatic changes need to be explored. From the facilities planning



perspective, if Crittenden were to increase enrollment, additional classrooms would need to be built to
accommodate this growth, The revised designs present an alternative library/innovation center to expand
classrooms and increase capacity for project based learning.

Phase IIT: Auditorium, Safety and Security Upgrades, Outdoor Improvements, and Track and Field
Improvements

The architect has moved forward based on the designs approved in June and is expecting to submit plans for
the auditorium to DSA by November 2014. The District recently submitted designs for the track to the City
of Mountain View and has begun discussions on the financial, legal, and construction coordination issues
required to allow the District and City to work together on these projects. District administration has met
with various vendors regarding security systems and landscaping designs and expects to finalize the
programming requirements early in 2015. Recently the team met with Canopy, an environmental nonprofit
dedicated to planting and protecting trees. Canopy is seeking a grant to plant over 1000 trees at Mountain
View schools and is working with our architects to identify potential planting plans for our middle schools.
In the future, the District anticipates incorporating Canopy tree plantings into our elementary school projects.

Graham;:

Beginning in the Spring 2015, the District will begin construction on an innovation center that incorporates
new classrooms and open collaboration space, reconfiguration of the lunch structure to accommodate a
MUR, renovation of the existing the school library, and restroom additions and modernization. In 2016,
Graham will begin construction on the auditorium, safety and security upgrades, outdoor improvements, and
sports center improvements. An abbreviated schedule is outlined below,

Innovation Center March 15, 2015-December 31, 2015
Administration to Library Conversion March 15, 2015-August 15, 2015
Lunch Structure to MUR Conversion March 15, 2015-August 15, 2015

Restrooms / Staff Lounge Modernization  June 15, 2015-August 15, 2015
Auditorium July 15, 2015- August 15, 2016
Site Improvements June 15, 2016-August 15, 2016

Phase II: Innovation Center, Multi-Purpose Room and Restroom Modernization

Phase II is focused on construction of an innovation center, libraries, restroom modernization and
improvement of the lunch structure at Graham. The classroom building, proposed in June 2014, has six
standard classrooms and a project-based learning center with an approved budget of $3,750,000. The current
proposed design increased the project-based learning center and changed the shape of the building to allow
for a more standard construction methodology. Initially this project was anticipated to be modular built.
However, based on the lack of competitive bids received, it was determined that the structure could be more
economically constructed using the lease-lease back method. The proposed cost increase of $709,988 is
from the additional square footage and the additional code requirements that went into effect as of January 1,
2014, The program remains unchanged from the Board-approved design.



Phase III: Auditorium, Safety and Security Upgrades, Outdoor Improvements and Sports Center
Improvements

The auditorium building is programmed for 350 fixed seats and is projecting a $275K or 4% increase in
budget due to an unexpected escalation of construction cost and a previously unidentified need to relocate a
sewer line that is currently under the auditorium site. The remaining site work continues to be focused on
four key areas of improvement: the new administration and library building, the garden and courtyard
adjacent to the new multi-purpose room, the courtyard adjacent to the new innovation center, and the
courtyard adjacent to the new auditorium, The architect and landscape architect are working with Canopy to
incorporate Canopy trees into our design and offset some projected landscaping expenses.

Fiscal Impact:

These facilities are primarily being funded with proceeds from Measure G General Obligation Bonds. In
June 2014 the Board had approved a total budget of $52,370,130. In previous discussions, the Board had
approved allocating $50,000,000 of Measure G funds to pay for the middle school projects. In combination
with Measure G funds, the District has proposed utilizing other appropriate sources, including deferred
maintenance, developer fees, Shoreline reserves, and energy efficiency grants, as needed. Specifically, both
Shoreline and developer fees are focused, respectively, on preparing students for 21% century learning as well
as increasing capacity of existing facilities and are appropriately targeted toward the innovation centers.
Currently these funds exceed $8 million and are considered adequate to meet the needs of the middle school
projects.

Crittenden: At Crittenden the overall proposed budget has increased by $2,666,682. In Phase II, the
increase of § 2,326,527 is primarily from the increased footage of the new library/innovation center. In June
2014, the Board approved the schematic budget for the Crittenden library/innovation center at $6,634,722
based on a program square footage of approximately 13,000 SF essentially matching the building being
demolished. The current proposal at $8,961,249 is based on 17,500 SF due to inclusion of two additional
classrooms and the expansion of the project-based learning center to ensure all eight classrooms have access
to the innovation space. The design remains true to the program and consistent with comparable spaces at
Graham Middle School. Working concurrently on program and new facilities has proven enlightening. As
the program informed the design, the importance of a three-dimensional space with a larger volume became
more and more apparent. The buildings increased in square footage but more notably in cubic footage. The
proposed Crittenden library/innovation center is nearly double the volume of the single story design.
Similarly, the Graham Common Learning Center has increased in volume and transparency to provide a
more wide-open, three-dimensional experience. The changes have resulted in some impact to both schedule
and budget but the result is projects that are better aligned with program and honor the lessons of predecessor
projects such as the Stanford “D” School.

Graham: The overall Phase II and Phase III budgets have increased by $1,091,755. Both sites are
anticipating a slight increase to the auditorium buildings based on code changes. While the energy code
updates were anticipated, compliance is measured against Title 24 and remains subjective until the building
components are specified. The efficiency is then calculated and the energy consultant provides a list of items
that can be revised or upgraded to achieve the mandate. Typical items include mechanical units, glazing
systems and insulation, lighting and roofing materials. A cost-benefit analysis is then performed to determine
which upgrade provides the best overall value to the district.



Impact on new buildings includes exterior insulated finish systems, increases roof insulation, revised lighting
controls, more efficient HVAC systems, and upgraded glazing. Modernizations can prove more difficult as
the options are more limited when we start with an existing structure. In summary, the cost of compliance is
proving more significant than originally anticipated in part because it is impacting the trades that are already
under inflationary pressure, namely electrical, mechanical and glazing.

The program remains unchanged from the Board-approved design.

Recommended Action:

That the Board of Trustees approve the designs and budgets for Crittenden Middle School Phase Il and Phase
I11, and Graham Middle School Phase IT and Phase III projects.



Graham Phase |l lune-14 Oct-14 Delta
Restroom Modernization S 1,072,871 § 1,072,871 S -
Innovation Center S 3,750,000 S 4,459,988 $§ 709,988
Administration to Library S 777,389 § 816,258 $ 38,869
Lunch Structure to MUR 5 1,353,917 5§ 1,421,612 § 67,695
Subtotal 5 6,954,177 § 7,770,729 $ 816,552
Graham Phase Il
Pedestrian Safety & Parking $ 647,973 S 647,973 § -
Sports Center Improvements 5 200,000 S 200,000 S -
Security Upgrades 5 150,000 5 150,000 $ -
Qutdoor Improvements 5 1,177,230 $ 1,177,230 § -
Kitchen Upgrades 5 75,000 $ 75,000 5 -
Auditorium 5 6,610,000 S 6,885,203 $ 275,203
Subtotal 5 8,860,203 § 9,135,406 S 275,203
Crittenden Phase |l Jun-14 Oct-14 Delta
Reconfigure 2-Story ] 279,174 S 279,174 & .
Restroom Modernization S 657,689 5 657,689 S -
New Library /Innovation Center S 6,634,722 S 8,961,249 S 2,326,527
Subtotal s 7,571,585 S 9,898,112 § 2,326,527
Crittenden Phase ill
Pedestrian Safety & Parking ] 554,378 § 554,378 § -
P.E. Requirements ] 1,200,000 S 1,200,000 S -
Security Upgrades S 325,000 S 325,000 $ -
Outdoor Improvements S 993,576 S 993,576 S -
Kitchen Upgrades S 299,630 S 299,630 S -
Auditorium 5 6,803,098 § 7,143,253 § 340,155
Subtotal 5 10,175,682 S 10,515,837 & 340,155

Graham Crittenden
Phase 1 5 9,221,870 5 5,486,613
Phase It 5 7,770,729 $ 9,898,112
Phase Il 5 9,135,406 S 10,515,837
Reserve, FF&E, Deferred Maint. ] 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000

S 28,128,005 S 27,900,562



TEIGLTT S { TSEWOS'ET A R s | zsemeen 3 J esrTses § | S00°8TT 8 s | 0529E0LT 5 (e
- $ ] soroor's e 5 | eor’osw' sy - $ | sor'ser’s $ | sor'oera 3 " aseyq
= B Eity o] s{ - s §zieozze s - $ | vorroto'e L K45Y (48 H 11 3seyy
6re0TT s | wveren ¢ | vorzess $ firee'sn) s | zomeee ¢ | ssorsesy s | eso'sese $ 1oseyg
0 5 || S9vEEZ s e $ 9 SIEET s - S | S9VEEL s | s9v'EEL $ spafaug a3uCuILUTeR paLaaq
L6T'EL § | S60'EEL S | sos'aT $ | SREtL s | zo10E $ | 000°052 S | o00'0SL 3 WAL ADY Ut Sunlay ‘anpung
e $ | ooo'ose s - $ § DoD'OsL sl - $ | oooos: S | ooo'osL H auatay wesdosd
ey $ | vozeen s | sostzz § 4 IeL'5E § | osoeez $ | cewvorx s | teevor't H JET )
s90°0L £ Jlerw'esin) § | vertoet s Hate'sat'T) $ | £zt $ | SEE'TPS 5 | SEETYS $ WRYNSUEY 1YY P RUYLY
WyHvuo
526507 $ | srzzre'sT s | veotsT's S § merarn $ | zseste s | zas'006'22 $ | osweeTsT H |00
[aor ey s [ sezanvn st s fTaesiTon s| - s [ tersism S | tevscron s m oseyd
0zs'sT $ | oovzse's $]ure s §ogwotsr s | we9ee $ | soveeoton 5 | sesose’s $ 11 ateyd
FLiy¢) $ | sro'oma $ | sseerre FY s | ey s | 1tvsary s | trreary H | ameyy
[tras or) s | evvoie s |resor S § to0'1ZE sl - § | too'r2E $ [ Lo0v2e H {14 Sruruanen pasiajag
o'y $ | poo'ose sl - S 4 3695y s | zot'y § | o000 $ | voo'osL H ARG pUe SAIN ] ANBWRY
- $ | ooo'osL $ - $ 9 0007052 s O $ | ooo'ose $ | ooo'ose 1 uday weidord
“5r'e s | usamwz s | seg'seT H T S| et § |2ty s | zeener H 2410
BOS'OENFT $ Jie6z's69) $ ] fevarrt $ Hzos'szr'z) $ | zozioe’z $ | oov'sis ¢ | oo¥'ses [ FUEYNSUCY JAYI0 J IBSUYY
—4 MIANILL MO
(205} $ Jlrza'z1) 5§ t297EL S firir'znl S | rrrizetr $ | oon'ozt $ { 000'0ZT H |engng
- s| - H S s [T
- s] - H - H 1¥seyd
= s |ozz'o s § osz's0t H L1 $ | osseot $ | so0'0zT $ | oon'ozT H R ]
o L H o $ s1anfaud sxuevalREW PALRA0
- $ 8 s WauKiinb pur samxy unywng
- [ - 5 - s hudtay wedary
6L0°2T $ fis) sis m_.-ooﬂ_ sy vsozn H $ H 0
flowszt) 5 flaserz) [ Eixd $ Jlosz'ot) $ § 0ST°0L $ $ - WRYNSUOD 1MI0 F DIUYUY
g
(055°56) 1 Fil%1] S § 06S'ER $ || LEE°60T H 5| ifeeot § | L££7601 H (LT
(¥93's) s f{r3%'s) [ i 5 - $ $ - $ - H Bl
00'wL) 5§ TCESE $ | so0wt $ | tee's0T s $ | zet'sat § | Leg'sot - UollesuRI f [RLrialeg
osL7T) $ Hose'1} $]oset s - H H O H - $ L]
{ve's) § Jiveys] $ | ravs s - $ $ H $ seypy
€161 $ | ET6T 3 JiEs) H 51 - 5 5 H Jumpanpy
LS
Y1OZ S saL 3065 AG SONN 40 $3sN
vondaou| pred ot
009'ROTE B 009'9L0'5y 5 966"LVE'EE 5 J 009R09°E 3 (] 5 [sannd DAY sAIdaNs
yO6°LS2'9E S | OCE'SYI'E S | £92'605'5E $ § ¥0L'696'ET S BOT'96T'LE s -&m.ﬁn S || YO6°LSTIS [ nlwﬂ‘mn-dm [] _ﬂla._..
REIELTT § | 1eEveset s Jesetens s fescvseer s | wer'tsas $ | sovsnez 5 | osz'e0’s 5 [T
5265077 $ | prTveer S § PES'T6T'S Sspm TR S 26ETSEL 4 | T95'006°LZ L3141 $ UL
e sf - sy - st - $1 - $1 - sl - H ogse)
_:S_ J_-Sﬂ: $ p v s frrrzn) s ferrzer $ | 000021 $ | o000zt 5 L]
(065"E6) $ § Lvt'st S | 065°E6 $ | L£E°601 sf - S J £EE'601 $ | Let's0t H ]
SONMA $0 $3SN TYLOL
05 F0°0Y 5 proseuse s Feswisee $ | ros'990'on s | seorept $ J voo'ewr'os 5 | v05'990°'09 $ | srovie’zs H (203905
- $ - H - -3 - 5 = 5 - 5 0
99¥'0Z6'Y $ | v’z § | 9r'oee’y -3 O H 99076’y 1 - 1 Aunoys
o $ | oo0'eey 5 { 000'Eey $ |iooo‘eey) ¢ | ooo'eer $ { oo0'eRy s| - $ 194
000'0ET $ |(oo0’0s]  § 000°0ET s ] o00'0zz $ 000'0ET $ { 000’07z H AU 3 AIRU-6E UOIodold
fespoiad m_n_u.uuwn sjemve s | soz°scs s weIre 5 | 502906 H 1334 sadopasag
O5L'S0% $ Jloz'vst) $ § 06L'508 § | 0007000 $ 06L°508 £ | 000'000°T - AWPUNAEW PARA]
620°00E $ | t65TIT 5 § 6z0°00¢ $ 1 9tvest H 620"00E $ | gErsel H WAL pIHUINY
5Ly S | 6ty $ | L65'¥00°0S $ D $ | DOD'D00'0S § | 16 w0005 5 | 00000005 $ 9 Anseapy
PRawo} 03 ipng 01 ¥I0Z squandas o] DRI 0y BIpNg wnouy YU'ET'0L YIOZ/0E/9 $ANN 40 STOUNOS TVIOL
s3N oueieg Jupy Bueeq Rewad | uondaou) agejesy B0y anmeyren pegue) 1adpng pasodaiy 193png pasosddy
aNY SIEN0S TYLOL
Arewauns 133png - pauiquio)




261°650°% 5 | rzIveer S o $
5L 6502 s mrtreat S | veviens S| svoswit A e s | vsooeit S | ceviETst B [
] s | ovoret s vesor s [ sosstet s | zory § [ oot $ | wown 3 o)
(o] ¢ | sex'sovion sfeowe $ frwseron sy - $ | eewsisiot ¢ | reorsetor H t aseyy
oIs’st § | oowTELl's sfurn L1 ${ s69'ee 5 | sor"eeo'ot SRes0sLe 5 H¥tryd
PUsly § | sva'ore % || 96E'6rEE § jeowor S wsrery § | iear'y $ | ey s e
- H - 5] - $ uondAntuey
508 $ | cesone § | see’sa1 § foreeer $ | avrort s | zeeew $ | zeener H 200
POS 0T § [{eexs68) 5|ttt ¢ {zersarn) § | otz § | oow'seS S | oow'ses 1 TUTYISU0) AHA0 POk SAPIY
0 - s{ - H
[stezest OYITVE'ET $ | ve9'162°s S § sz s | zes'1sE’L s | T95°0062T < | osw'esz'se s 1507) paiatorg e L
TEIRL LES'66E'E [
ST $ | 165°6666 5 | seuaer $ { sev'ese'y P acial s | tesisor § | zs9'szt'on $ mowns
- s | s0ons 3| - B S B ESTEPTL B LD s T
$ 5] - §
% | oea'esz H § | os9'66r 5 OE9 56T 5 | oevssz 14 sapradn vy
- s - 5| - §
(zow's) § | sar'ess $feov's $ § 9IS'E66 H 9L5°666 % | ses'iss $ SLUMUBAOKIUR JCOPING
- $ - st - $
$ | ooo'sze s| - $ | ooorsze 5 000°STE $ | ooorsze H sapeadn Aunoes
$ - st - 1
4 | ooo'ooz't L] $ | ooc‘ooz’t $ 000'002'L 4 | ooo'oozt 5 TIUALAADITUN HIUED FLIODS DU 34
H - H $
$ | n2€°vss H § | HEYss § RIEYSS $ | seevss $ Jurpey / Maages unntapay
$ - sl - $ Penue) LrpmasuoD
- § - $ $
Hese) m—Hmﬂ_ s]sse sl - $ e
LETENE % Jlosza sjost'e $§ Jlemo'tss) $ | eo0f1ss s
L0201 5 Hesaost) 5 | £59091 5 {loos'0L0°'T) § | oos'veo’t [ RUSHATUCD SRR PUt SIAUIIY
LEOVOE § | {z0'o9s’L [ [T
LE0W9E 5 | {20'D95° 5 § 15506t $ § 08E'SET'L $ | se5'YSs § | sot'ifoor $ | sesosi't § o0
- H ] 51 - s feov'cse S SP9'L58 B IS5 s UONERUISPOYY Woo IRy
- H st - $
o $ | £e6gLT s $ fesener $ £66'8eT $ | see'ax s OO SURUIUE PI LI
A I3 5 - $
- 1 st - $ ) wirieacuw Supnpuy
B 5 | tzrvis's 3 § | rzeveon $ 47196 s | zzewevs H Buippng Asmsqn) VoMU MIN
- 3] - % sl - $ PR UogINSUOY
- H - H $
0I5'SL § | 9s6°092 s et 5 [ erser $ | #69%eE [ R Ti5e] § | vit'ssz 1 WOO A AS-Z Indyuinng
& § - s - $
06T $ o9l H B3 $ Hove“th ${oosT ] 100
TE'CIT § flusoes) 49975 § [{oss'aaz) $ | 06599z §
SSETEL 5 fisvorsrnl § | Sw'61T $ Jlooozse) $ { 000757 H TIUEYNTUGD MO PUE R
sgE'Isy § | 668ELS 3 =™
SHE'95w 5 | wsrre S| PILZIEY $ prisinn S | 001'69%°S § | itsem's £ | s19'9mr's § 1nmens
(ses*t) $ flses'ni H 3 st - $ w0t RUGOISTTD aBIIPOYY
N $ M § Jirroms) $]trows 5 ogiueg
g $ 1 - $F - $ xrz {8 Pa} w00 rseLy 01 33iy
799°10T H BT 5 [tzes'een) -] Bii37Ad $ A0
- H . 5 - H - $ 14 ALY 01 SLOONIE)
Lvrsy % | #s0'ELS S | EvEe9r'E S frza'es $ | IFOLEE % | e’ | 1m'Exs’s [ YO ) LTI SUCT
- 5 o st - $
LL60'Y) § | 1s€708T $ | so9's0e 5 pRIrrst § | zessot § | ooo'oos § | oco'oos $ Y 10Q pue Adotourpag
- s - st - $
919°L sl $ | oE"EET $ forTonr $ ot | zeeay | Ty 5 e
HIIS €42} 5 flozrier] s oty $ {leoo’eat] $ | so'eet 5 SuEYRte) JMG
ZELEIT $ | ZErErT s | wsrzov st - $ | oow'ses $ | oov'szs $ | oov’ses s SUTHAEGD QA0 PUE SDIUNY
He0s%) B G 5 | #dyd
Ho05s) $ | eat'eony 3| rvetnt 5 { sez'siaT $ | ore's $ | coo'vze’n $ | covnzet § mowng
Hwas'ot) 4 | ewors $ || vasot ${ fo0rTE $ LOO'TZE ¢ | eoo'nzs 3 stlosg ourunuew pauagag
= $ s H
ot'r § | ooo'ose sy - i1 $ | zory 4 | oooess s | ooo'esL $ WA ND] PuE S04 “Famyung
= 3 o 5
s § | ooo'ose 5 D $ { 00070SL - 0ON0SL 4 1 000'0sL H Y W0
{093t} $ {{oss 1) § oot $
919'T sq - sf - $ flar91) $ | stst s IR0 pUs SRy
FLOZ soquiazdas o PI-ET0T YUOES [eisuan
peRuay 0L wipng o) vondaouj wosy  fownuo) o 1apng B Pl sirot 1ipng
oy SuneR] Rty suled Pred [mo) aouspey Sgu0) paosddy | jadpng pasodaug pancuddy pieog 1aipag uApUIL




G

§
T VIS A S| bevisss s |sooserer 5] osteeviz S =y
L6T'EL oI SO&'ST [3 ETR5 TR [} HE 1] §foaveET H AR Y STOY
o s | eozosr's s| - $ | sozomrs [ § | sow'ses $ | toronrs $ maseyy
& s| ooz s - ) ITERTL s - $ | versen’y s | eI H n eyl
TR § | (sv'evoL § | 1ozeesy $ fivee'se} § | e0' e’ § | verisess | eSS $ Py
] $| - 1] s - $ AU UG
t'zy H L s § | st $]sen § foso'ene s | cervor't § | zeevore H o
0’0l $ plovs'estr) $ | verTos'T s fintesantt) § f esTie 5 | seeTes § | seetes $ RuUEPLT) S0 T DRIARY
LT $ | et'vs'et $
BEYRLTT $ | TeEves N § | ssw'ney’ 4§ TsLveEtLT $ 4 BEPTSY'E § | soo'sTr'sz 4 | OSTYED LT $ B0 paLdoag e,
FEOVSE S| ccacy s -
SEUYSE § | 9rE'6L'n td Hiigs) $ fors'ivr’s § | Ly £ | sor'sst's $ | fozoen’s $ feenng
B § | coo'otas $| - € | 000'019™ 5 torsIg 4 | ooc'ores $ W gy
e $ s - $
$ | ooo'se $ % fooo'se H Hoa'se § j ooo'se $ padn L
H s - H
s forTuty $ § foez’Lany $ [ 147184 § ot $ TILIADNILY JOSPING
$ st - $
§ | ooo'ostT $ $ j ooo'sst s 00'0sT | oostest H Fapeidn kunaeg
§ - s - H
5 | ooo'ooz 5 $ | ooo'ocoz $ 000°00Z § | ooo'ooz H TIUINOIU RIIE PO
H S st - $
$ et sl - $ fes'orn H e'ird LY 1] $ urpey f ayes veunapay
sy - sl - il - H PEQUEY UoTINGILTY
$ - H H
- 1) I sl - st - H b ]
£I9'60r § Jlosze) $ | osz! $ {leex'orv] § ey $
(zs°cs) $ Jlews'ss) $ | Les'ss H & FERTIUOT) JHA0 T BN
(3] s | sE6'oas’y s ey
%ﬂnﬁ_ $ | sré'om’y S | f2E'682 5 Frsotoe $ § 055's0T $ | rorine bl Easi <y § (mmqng
- $pirs'sSE"T [3 = S [ LTE'EsSET 3 f{I3TT54 S| L1s'ese’T 5 W 01 SH0IAILE yun]
$ st - §
§peeLis $ spesiL H "BTIT S perELLe 1 A oy voneRsULPY
& $ st - H
§ | vooose $ $ | oooose’s $ 1665 § joooose’s $ 2] uopesouy
S H s - $
§ | st H § fseuene $ SEN99T § | serrenz $ FWOSLIY SuTUTUIR P3G
G $ s - $
= § | uszuot § §fTrTet § L{2 §od a4 § | uryot § UONETUIROY WOONSAY
- sl - $ 1 - H PLRUOY uorBNISLOY
S $ 8y - H
[ s - H $ [loss) 5 Jost H L]
sro'tet § [iser'ss) s $ oo soz} $ § ooz'soz $
|isez'tsn) 5 jimrzsr) H et $h - S RUERTLOY SN F IR
SES'EFE § | revato't § n¥TY
SES'IvE § | revozot E Eialis ] 5 | tevarz $ | ssvess $ { uwraz's $Jornzzs $ racgeg
EI9'ES sl - s - 4 fHeTses) § | ityes H TUOASSE) JRLIPA Y
- $ 1 H
ser'st $ H $ pirer'st} HI L1214 H sy ) wWoo N
o H $ fieaten) §nre H panmos
- $ H ] - $ wonLentrapugry o) A
crres H O $ ficrr'ss) §pemv'es H hary
& | - ${ - H $ 0udg Anag) miny
eLzue $|szur ${ sor'roey 1 § | eersao’t § | seo'seo'e 3 | w90 $ PROUS) LTy
- $ - | - $
o $|rvur §su'me § || resesr $ | wo'ons 5 | cov'oos % J ooo'oos $ AMNIANTS Ry T Pk Aderounpa)
- $ - sl - $
144 S$] s § | 1T0zE S| terase $ | oot'sez $ | Lervor't § | zevvor's $ PO
CEE'ITT s Jists’zue] § PSS $ Horwews) $ | sve'ers H ANROI) SO
(r2'ovy] S Jlezt'ovy} 5 pesr'InG $1 - $ | see'tes S | SEE'TYS $ | sextivs 5 FIUEYNTIOT SO T 1INy
[ 2] [ EE TR H 1oy
SITL SIsYsUT 5§ ETTNT S E8L'E0L't § | ot $ [ sywenet $ | soweeit £ |mowng
- 0BG st - s § seveer $ T3 s | soreez § TI0.4 TRTUNLIY PaLIa g
5 H o st - $
61T $fseoesr $ | soet H 17 ${ tot'or $ J coa'ose $ | oooose $ RG] PUR SAINIE S AL
5 EH - st - $
o 5 Joooross sl - § joooose H coa'ess $ | sovosc H nsaay wesSosy
. $ -+ 5 f $ B 5
hoe"t) $ fisot’1) H LA s 5 I0
¥1 saquindag oy T sTRCOT YIOES [
PO DL wipng o} uond I wosy panuoy o 3lpng 1N panuey 13pag *
Sapupmuay sounegh Punsrey suRTg Pind o) aumaey TPRNUT) pasnddy parcdag paaouddy pirod
lomunung yipng - weyesg



LO1HLSIa TOOHOS NYWSIHM M3IIA NIVLINROW £
E‘HQ @ X TOOHOS FT1AAIN NIANILLIHD MM,JW
N (' NVi1d 3lIS -’

8seUd emnd [ | Z eseyd| | A - . - 1 ...rrl.

€ eseyd [ |

aN3oaT

LA ILD

]
L

cuy



MER-7.41) vial
SEN 1Y 4
MER-} AT El

¥10z/ €1 / ol Ava
JEHE £

TrEOEET XYL LIRL ST Clw
£61v6 ¥D ODEILINYEL NYS




W 2871 Tl
aL4 0Il'g Hz
L4 St L

ytoz/ €1 / 0L Alva
ICHS 2

W

400714 aNODD

YO EET XV LINL SST RIy
8176 ¥D ODELINYEL NYS§
0C ALETAVESANNYALL
AdTIKINAN SIMET IMIATQ

IN'IA




ASTSDIIW SEATT SHARG PLISIA [00Y2S UEWSIGAL MIIA WEEJUNOT

s, e
AT™H a W
C .m. ” 3 ’ivlﬁf
LN | &

uipjing wnuolpny

uejd 100|4
~ P uz__ﬁpml ffffff
. N3WOM
IoVLS
NOtdY
3INGUSIA —= e
VIHY ONILV3S S3A
- HI008
DD —
3 e -
g
- BN " VZV1d ABINZ
1 10Ny —=""=" .
.<:m_._..:o..n Smmtainey. — -

i T uufﬂ. ...I.I.I —



VITNIND I ST SWAH0 PLISI [00YOIS UBUWISIYAA MIIA UIB)UNROJAI

WwNoNpNY 3yl Jo aAnoadsiad |elay M “w M w

vape e




LNJW3SV3 XOvdl d3S0d0dd TI00HOS I1AAIN NIANALLIMO

~ *roe
X~ T
™ T @ 0-29=1 TV
<X C e ety N
/ - -llu.’ll
e * T
/ . l.l.n.llpl.- . =
Q / ) ' . tll.l.al.lo » ——— fﬂ @
N N, \IJ N m.
2 /l- ————
e Tt
% t y __H__I
TUGS AT H D \H||ﬂ ....I/./
P X % — M \
_ N
N /
e Ny o ovfovs 3wg \
. a
W3 6269 \
IN3NISY3 035040¥d // ~
00U Tivassva (3) I//
0 Towvd (-
T T TVEEW (3
(9) 20
"dAL ‘NWIGH

Qb SLH)

aRu (3)

3




]

=5 v_b.HEQ ,on..._lu_.._um — TIOE'CL'EO o_wova<u.i!.>c_n.=_5!.EmE?uUnh:._\\MuJ
aE NV1d 311S 3dVIOSANYI UOKOZ|UIBPOW [0OYDS BIPPIW WOYDIS' ...\_

B ¥

i Tullm.-x.“.-un

B — e .
LR AEITL I T
DONDIFYY JOUSIA

4, 107 DRDEYY

P
‘ua

JISNW/aNvY A

WIIHOLONY
€ ez im0

ivmudav & waiw ol
ii¥am GI4IADD NOOQING Hilm SIDF1
Y1V gNiLIvM 0233r03 (D 40 MOILYELCINIWAY ONY SAdWYD JHE

©L ARIMI NIVH IHE 10 SLHIWAAQ IS
Wit vt (B & : @

Tiva 1ive &)
NOif [NIWANOR @ onranve aniv @
NoiovIE G

110 d39Q 15¥YQOMO3IIY 01 31%)
SWAaLI 1 LNIWIUONI 14100 30 oNINBGIm MY 2004010 ThE @

TyNGiHlIagyY - oNIDE APLND Wivei13304 sevanodat D)

Fasv 1108 1AYAGWEIN Wilm ATNE TAIND

v aMaw g
Baznd Mb aliviiave] symsiva diiednod §5 ¥ YIVIL ATIND Wviisiadd Nive (D)
QEYALEN0D 1IHEIDS FOGOIRS T LTEAS] @

13v¢t RP0M 4NTID

Bod E319vy BVEvASW Wil FL 1NN

WODILEYID O1 ENIZYIdY q¥vilanod
NITHAS MIN BTINTD ONINEY ] 3nc ()

$5023% N 2aded
ANT WIveL5IQN J4VE ANIJE0 OL [S0A0R
TCOMIS DN NG GIT013F $3ivD ontds 85

TFiiw

i dmn
SHIlITM 140 4004 [ 46 33k d1adn0 S (] InM 04 INIIVIOY OUTALIAED DNIMIE (D)

Y& OLIMA 1Y JHIw4INGY vy

HYMIEAW NIFIIS O 1INTJ IYNIINYNID §D d3vis 3 aER

ARDID Anv SYIRY ONIOVIL ‘SOMIHSIN

[ LLEL-20] INd Nivm LFONE m“uz:.__._.::-tqzuﬁ
NIAvaidEh do sivm NO AYTITHG 1Y Hilm J1ONAQT IHIANNE F DULve 2RV R
& 1t 4006100 alto1INI Imik osnaaod (g
ONLLYES 408
¥L234% QMIVaREl Hilm 10YIS 10004IND IF CNINSIMING Hilm WOOFEEY1Y

HEIMLIE OHINEYIT 10 0QLNO Q1NdAGY (T)
ANIIYIE QANALL GHY JOVLS 100K
LA NY DMIGAIINE QEYAIENOD Lav min (B £t uina

NI ENOORISIN INIOALE 1O K i v

waizonieny min 63 fre r otlaar @
Ly Likn

ETasy 1104000 NEBONOEY JIVES 48 NENYTINGIGOw (F)

T 4h 3300 GL SNGIIGAY | SNONEYERITY i)
L itNA AavEIN d0 wollvRiNalaon (B
EWITd NIV ONY HYHIESTG24
HiVE 40 $NOIIGAY / BINIWIAOREmI (@) FULING mODIEEYID 23015 ML MmN (D)
TIO1 ONEIRYS 1TV 4O NOLEWENDLIND TR @ @l LINn 3Aw miN e
il AHIAWZEINE - dN23ODFT Il AINIWIYONI * ANIDIT



3uns u—m LHOUY Y LUY]  BLOZ'SLOL 1DRILSIA TOOHDS NYWSIHM MIIA NIVINNOW
V— |_| m ONIGTING WOOUSSY1D ANOLS-OML 1 90014 LSuid [ oL LINA JOOHIS I1AaIN NYHYED

H3ILNAD ...H_L
oz_zmﬁ,_zoszou ;5_

1H0ddNs

SWOOHSSY1D

aa

22

! |8




SNIATING WOOUSSYID AHOLS-OML | HOO1d ANODIS T 1 LINN TO0HOS I1aqiN NVYHYED

Alld

THNEITLIHDHY -Q FLOZ'SE 0L LIHLSIA YIO0HDS NYIWSIHM MIIA NIVLNNOW
L]

YAINTD |
ININBVITNOWWOD [

LHOGAS

SWOOHSSYID




Pt
Lt
[

s
(i}

NG

ROCivE BLELD

s
S

TWS-STORY CLAS




CLASSROOM BUILD

Q-STORY




i

13535 OO NG INGOYSSYID AHO LS OMLY 1110 LINT




WCOHSSVID OO LSHid | 9id ING INOOYSSY D AUOLS-OAML | +1 LINA




HOOT LSHIH | ONIGHAS MOOYSSYID AYOIS- OMi | FT LINA




2 400N ONCITS | DNICTHAE INCONSSYTD AHCLS-OM

—

- will




é
>
m
=
O
G
o
s}
)
L
=
=
>
)
L=
W
e
2

LN L4




sunlazlinouv v auvy PLOZZO0L

12141510 TO0HIS NYINSIHM MIIA NIVANNOW

V_ | |_| I of NV1d¥O001d Hi1vaHL]as 1iNn

140ddnE
JINGILSIA

HALvIHL

TTOOHOS 37aAIN WYHYYED

LARLLEE AR RE

LA VUL
LVRE SR L L RE Y
LARE\RELRT LR 1Y
LR LRE LR Y]

LU B ey gy
LR R B R
PR

Iy g oy
R NN N T
..:::::.




XL ONIONNG ¥3LV3IHL | 97 1IN0

—
R




BOR-LIXT | ONIATING W3 LWIHL | B LT




